

Third Generation Partnership Project

DRAFT REPORT v1.1.0

3GPP TSG-CN / ETSI SMG3

13th - 15th December 1999
Nice, France



Hosted by ETSI



Chairman: Harald Dettner, Siemens AG. Harald.dettner@icn.siemens.de
Vice Chairman: Steven Hayes. Stephen.hayes@ericsson.com
Vice Chairman: Masami Yabusaki. Yabusaki@docomo.fr
Secretary: David Boswarthick, ETSI MCC. david.boswarthick@etsi.fr

Table of contents

1	Opening of the Meeting.....	4
2	Approval of the TSG_CN#5 Meeting Report from Kyongju	4
4	Letters / Reports from other groups and Urgent Issues	4
4.1	TSG_CN Working Groups	4
4.2	Other 3GPP TS Groups.....	6
4.3	Others	8
5	Reports from TSG_CN Working Groups.....	9
5.1	TSG_CN WG1 (N1).....	9
5.1.1	Report from N1.....	9
5.1.2	Questions for Advice and Decisions from N1.....	10
5.1.3	Approval of Contributions from N1.....	10
5.2	TSG_CN WG2 (N2).....	16
5.2.1	Report from N2.....	16
5.2.2	Questions for Advice and Decisions from N2.....	16
5.2.3	Approval of Contributions from N2.....	16
5.3	TSG_CN WG1 (N3).....	23
5.3.1	Report from N3.....	23
5.3.2	Questions for Advice and Decisions from N3.....	23
5.3.3	Approval of Contributions from N3.....	24
5.4	TSG_CN WG SS Ad Hoc (NSS).....	26
5.4.1	Report from NSS.....	26
5.4.2	Questions for Advice and Decisions from NSS.....	26
5.4.3	Approval of Contributions from NSS.....	26
5.5	TSG_CN VHE / OSA Ad Hoc Activity.....	28
5.6	TSG_CN ITU-T Co-ordination Activity.....	29
5.7	Review of TSG_CN Work Program.....	29
5.7.1	Work Items / Work Tasks in TSG_CN and SWGs	29
5.7.2	Release 1999 and Release 2000.....	30
5.8	Letters to Other Groups	34
5.9	Other Issues.....	34
6	Technical Co-ordination with Others.....	34
6.1	Other 3GPP TS_Groups.....	34
6.2	Other bodies (e.g. SMG).....	34
6.3	ITU.....	34
7	Project Management.....	34
7.1	Work Item Management.....	34

7.2	Specifications within the TSG_CN Domain.....	35
7.3	Working Methods and Work Style.....	35
7.4	Support Arrangements.....	35
7.5	Other Issues.....	35
8	Postponed Issues.....	35
9	Work plan and Future Meetings.....	35
9.1	All IP R2000.....	35
10	Any Other Business.....	35
11	Close of Meeting.....	35
ANNEX A: OUTPUT MATERIAL.....		36
A.1	Liaison Statements.....	36
A.2	Work Items.....	36
A.3	New Specifications / Technical Reports.....	36
ANNEX B: Participants List for CN3#6.....		37
ANNEX C: List of Documents.....		41
ANNEX D: List of CRs Approved by TSG_CN#6.....		42
ANNEX E: SMG3 Plenary Meeting # 6 - 15 th December 1999.....		43
11.	Outcome of TSG_N#6 Meeting 13-15 th December 1999.....	43
History	44	

1 Opening of the Meeting

The 6th TSG_CN plenary meeting took place from 13th to the 15th of December in Nice hosted by ETSI. Adrian Scrase welcomed the TSG_CN delegates to the south of France on behalf of ETSI and explained the logistical details. Meeting took place at the Acropolis conference center in the Heart of the old Nice.

The CN Chairman, Mr. Harald Dettner opened the meeting at 10:00 on Monday 13th December.

2 Approval of the Agenda

NP-99398: Draft Meeting Agenda.

RESULT: The Agenda was **REVISED** to NP-99400

B REVISED B

NP-99400: Meeting Agenda. Presented by the TSG_CN Chairman.

DISCUSSION: The meeting agenda was revised at the beginning of the meeting to include allocation of documents to agenda items.

Some late entry documents were also allocated to the agenda items.

RESULT: The Agenda was **AGREED**.

3 Approval of the TSG_CN#5 Meeting Report from Kyongju

NP-99396: Revised CN#5 Meeting Report from the Kyonju meeting.

DISCUSSION: The CN#5 meeting report was completed and distributed by the secretary at the end of the meeting. There was the usual 2-week deadline for comments by e-mail, and these comments have been integrated in the revised meeting report presented in this document.

RESULT: The document was **APPROVED**.

4 Letters / Reports from other groups and Urgent Issues

4.1 TSG_CN Working Groups

NP-99399: Liaison Statement on LCS CRs and GTs for GSM Release 98 in SMG#30.
Presented by Hannu CN1 Chairman.

CONTENT: N1 informs SMG#30bis and CN-plenary on which draft specifications and CRs were reviewed and approved by the recent meeting of N1.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99405: Proposed LS to TSG-SA, TSG-SA1 and TSG-SA2 from N2 on CAMEL Control of VoIP Services FTR. Steffen CN2A chairman.

CONTENT: Contains the draft TR of CAMEL control of IP (given also in **NP-99510**).

DISCUSSION: the related TR in **NP-99510** was revised to **NP-99561** and the LS was revised also to reflect this.

RESULT: The document was **REVISED** to NP-99534

B REVISED B

NP-99534: Rev. LS to TSG-SA, TSG-SA1 and TSG-SA2 from N2 on CAMEL Control of VoIP Services FTR.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** to be distributed by e-mail after the TSG_N meeting

NP-99561: Feasibility Technical Report – CAMEL Control of VoIP Services (3G TR 21.978 version 2.0.0)

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** to be distributed by e-mail after the TSG_N meeting

NP-99407: **Response Liaison Statement on Active Location Retrieval in CAMEL Phase 3.** Presented by Hannu CN1 Chairman.

CONTENT: The document provides the following information regarding ALR in CAMEL P.3.
All necessary procedures and signaling messages already exist in the specifications.
Thus:

- There is no specific impact on the MS due to the Active Location Retrieval functionality.
- There is no impact on specifications handled by TSG N1. TSG N1 has no work to do on the Active Location Retrieval functionality.
- For TSG N1 viewpoint, this functionality can be available for Release 99.

DISCUSSION: The CR was conditionally approved in N2A and this LS from N1 confirms their assumptions. N1 and N2A will communicate and hopefully provide CRs to the next plenary.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99408: **LS from N1 on Liaison Statement on Maximum size of N-PDU.** Presented by Hannu CN1 Chairman.

CONTENT: In N1, maximum size of N-PDU has been discussed in the last two meetings. According to their, we find that a maximum SDU size up to 1502 octets has no impact on N1 specifications, see attached N1-99D74.
N1 also see that if S1 has considered it suitable to increase the maximum SDU size then this has got an impact on specifications under S2 control, such as 23.060 and 23.107.

DISCUSSION: Not addressed to CN plenary hence note activity.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99511: **LS from N2 on the scope of CAMEL Phase 3.** Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.

CONTENT: Contains the detailed comments of the content of CAMEL Phase 3.

DISCUSSION: It can be noted that Camel Ph.2 took also 2 years to realize. It is unlikely that **all** CAMEL Ph.3 features are realized by the next N#7 meeting.
There were some suggestions to reduce the scope of Camel Ph.3 in order to have these features realized by March 2000. In response to this Ian Park mentioned that it would take a great amount of time to do the analysis of open issues which would delay the overall delivery of Camel Ph.3.
CN Chairman asks CAMEL delegates to provide all CRs for this work item by CN#8. Reply for Steffen; related errors in the specifications are only recognized once implementation is underway.

The CN Chairman drafted a CN position paper to clarify the following comments (**NP-99532**)

- [POSITION: CN#7 we will review the status of all CAMEL Ph3 items, and any items which N2 cannot assure as stable and which is still contentious shall be excluded of R99.](#)

RESULT: The plenary **ENDORSES** the sending of this LS by N2.

NP-99532: Position Paper on the Requirements for finalizing the content of CAMEL Phase 3

CONTENT: **En Resume:** It is seen as essential that the CAMEL phase 3 specifications can be used as the basis for implementations early in the year 2000. N2 are therefore urged to work towards solutions for all open issues, ready to be presented for approval to CN plenary meeting #7, 13 – 15 March 2000. This will give implementers and operators the necessary confidence that the list of CAMEL features shown in document NP-99511 as part of CAMEL Phase 3 will really be there. If any of the features listed in NP-99511 remains contentious at CN #7 then there is a serious risk that the feature would have to be postponed to CAMEL Phase4

RESULT: **Document will be forwarded to N2 for consideration.**

NP-99512: LS from SS Ah Hoc on LCS. Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.

CONTENT: Relates to a similar document from N1 and T1P1.

TSG CN SS ad hoc group doubts if LCS can be approved as part of Release 98 as LCS brings new functionality, i.e. GSM TS 04.30 is a new specification. TSG CN meeting have taken over the responsibility for maintaining GSM Core Network specifications from SMG3. At the meeting at Kyongju in October 1999 TSG CN have agreed that it will not be acceptable to change GSM Release 98 (or earlier releases) except to deal with serious technical errors.

Therefore TSG CN SS ad hoc recommends the approval of LCS as a Release 99 work item.

DISCUSSION: **Hannu;** LCS was agreed as no impacted be the R97/R98 freezing and it was presented before the freezing came into place, (i.e. at the CN#6 Meeting).

Mikko; The specification 04.30 approved by SMG30 bis meeting and confirmed that LCS is a R98 feature.

Harald; this was also agreed in the Fort Lauderdale meeting.

- [CN did not support SS Ad Hocs opinion, and N plenary confirms that LCS is a part of Release 98.](#)

RESULT: The document was **NOT AGREED**.

RELATED LS

NP-99526: Rev. LS from SS Ah Hoc on LCS. Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.

RESULT: **AGREED** to be taken to T1.P1 by Stephen Hayes.

4.2 Other 3GPP TS Groups

NP-99529: LS from S2 on Transcoder free operation.

CONTENT: S2 highlights some open issues about location and control of speech codec in an outgoing liaison statement destined to N2 on the issue of transcoder free operation resp. TRAU issues)..

S2 would like to highlight the open issues to TSG CN and ask them to take them into consideration when discussing the submission of work not yet completed in R99.

DISCUSSION: N2B chairman explained that unfortunately the LS was received late in N2 so that a reply from N2 was produced but it is unclear whether the issues are resolved now from S2 perspective.

RESULT: The LS is forwarded to N2 and N1 for important action.
The document was NOTED.

NP-99401: LS from SA2 on CBC-RNC Protocol Responsibility. Presented by Hannu N1 chairman.

CONTENT: N1 has stated in S2-99A51 (N1-99A88) that they see some kind of responsibility because the CBC should be part of the core network but until now they have no expertise in that field.

N2 sees responsibilities only for the interface between the CBC and the SGSN, which will mainly provide transport functionality. Additionally due to the workload they advised S2 to consider the specification beyond release 99.

DISCUSSION: **Q. from Mikko:** Routing node only applicable to packet or also switching? **R.** There is a high probability that it will be packet only.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED.**

NP-99402: LS from SMG10 & TSG-SA WG3 on the application of IST to emergency calls

CONTENT: SMG10 and TSG-SA WG3 would like to state that the termination of emergency calls must be a VPLMN option and that this should be stated in the appropriate specifications.

DISCUSSION: The specifications mentioned are in the ownership of SMG10 and TSG-SA WG3, hence the inclusion of this information is out of the domain of CN.

The liaison is to be treated by N2 who will reply to SA-WG3 directly.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED.**

NP-99403: LS from N2 on S2 on establishment of a QoS taskforce.

CONTENT: Sent to S2 and copied to N plenary for information. The document was not presented.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED.**

NP-99466: LS from SA2 on CDR creation for non-charging liable subscriptions

RESULT: The document was **WITHDRAWN – DUPLICATE N3-99469.**

NP-99469: LS from SA2 on CDR creation for non-charging liable subscriptions

CONTENT: S2 would like to bring to the awareness of TSG CN an issue related to the completion of charging in R99. The issue is related to the creation of the CDRs in case of non-charging liable subscriptions, e.g. in case of prepaid subscriptions. S2 has conditionally accepted a Change Request on the suppressing of the unnecessary CDRs on subscribers that are not liable for charging. In this context, S2 conditional acceptance signifies that the CR shall be a part of Release 99 if TSG CN should accept this feature as a part of R99.

Because this causes a few CRs to TSG CN WG2, S2 ask the TSG CN if it would be possible to add this feature into R99 specifications in order to complete this work.

DISCUSSION: Nokia have drafted the related CRs to 29.002 and 29.060 (**NP-99485/486**) for inclusion in R99.

➤ [**N-Plenary agrees to the inclusion of CDR as a part of R99.**](#)

RESULT: The document was **NOTED.**

NP-99468: **LS from SA2 on Re. LS on security issues in VHE/OSA** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu
CONTENT: SA2 requests that SA3 give guidance as to the re-use of the mechanisms defined in the Security Architecture (TS 33.103) under development and on the perceived need for Mutual Authentication between the UA and Application. The CN OSA ad-hoc are requested to note the requirement for the "UA to Application and User Data, Authentication and Authorization", for which SA2 and SA3 are currently specifying the details. Also to consider the specification work is being developed in SA3
RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99530: **LS from SA3 on MAP security.**
CONTENT: S3 have noted a number of other questions on MAP security from the liaison statement. A joint ad hoc meeting of experts from S3 and N2 is proposed to resolve the questions raised by N2, progress the work according to the above principles, and draft the necessary CR to 29.002. It is proposed that the meeting will be held in Darmstadt, Germany on 6th and 7th January 2000, hosted by Deutsche Telekom.
DISCUSSION: Meeting dates can be modified to avoid clashes with other meetings
Requirement for agreed terms of reference for this meeting to be agreed by e-mail.
RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

4.3 Others

NP-99404: **LS from T1.P1 on transfer of LCS to 3GPP.** Presented by Steven Hayes
CONTENT: T1P1 has the intention to transfer the responsibility of GSM LCS to 3GPP.
DISCUSSION: **Note:** In the future the source of CRs should not be an SDO, only the companies representing that SDO.
➤ [CN#7 should be identified to T1.P1 to be the hard deadline for the transfer of the LCS to 3GPP.](#)
Concerns were raised on the transfer of SMG2 related LCS specifications not being transferred before TSG#8.
These issues will be compiled into related LS to T1.P1 in **NP-99527**.
RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

RELATED LS

NP-99527: **LS to T1.P1 on the transfer of LCS to 3GPP.**
RESULT: The LS was **APPROVED** to be sent from CN.

RELATED LS

NP-99573: **LS to T1P1.5 on LCS decisions in TSG-CN#6.**
RESULT: The LS was **AGREED** to be taken to T1.P1 to by Stephen Hayes.

NP-99409: **LS from SMG2 on UE/MS idle mode operation.** Presented by Hannu, N1 chairman.
CONTENT: The document contains the conclusions from the 'Handover and Cell Selection' workshop held in June. This is provided to allow checking of whether this aligns with the current Stage 1, and working assumptions in the different groups:

DISCUSSION: This proposal is a bit outdated and N1 have both endorsed the principle and actually begun work which is given in (**NP-99454 and NP-99455**).

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99503: **Input document from BT. Discussion on an all IP based Core Network.** Presented by Henry Taylor of BT.

CONTENT: It is proposed that 3GPP-CN considers during this meeting, how best to progress work on an All IP Network architecture activity for Release 2000. We shall discuss how best to provide the correct structure within TSG CN so as to focus the correct resources and skills necessary to complete the work. We must consider how this can be done without damage to our current activities, commitments and heavy workloads within TSG CN work groups.

DISCUSSION: CN will address this in **agenda item 9.1**. The paper raises many questions and it is hoped to provide a draft agenda for the All IP workshop in Mexico Jan 2000.

BT proposes a number of cross TSG Ad Hocs or e-mail discussion in preparation for the Jan meeting.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

5 Reports from TSG_CN Working Groups.

5.1 TSG_CN WG1 (N1).

5.1.1 Report from N1.

NP-99410: **N1 Status Report.** Presented by Hannu, N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document summarizes the progress of TSG_N1 on the work items, which have been active in the working group since the previous TSG_N plenary meeting.

DISCUSSION: **Relating to section 4.3.5 L3 segmentation** – the question is raised by N1 on applying level 2 segmentation. There are no CRs for R99, and the Work item is agreed by N plenary to shift the W.I to R2000.

Relating to section 4.3.11 PAGING RESPONSE as MM message. There is an administrative problem for non-ETSI 3GPP members as ETSI specifications (not just published standards but the latest reference versions) are not visible to them. This matter should be solved with no delay and TSGN1 is asking for TSGN #6 to raise this issue to the TSG-SA #6.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99412: **Kobe Meeting Report.**

CONTENT: Not presented to the plenary, and provided for information only.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99413: **Bad Aibling Meeting Report.**

CONTENT: Not presented to the plenary, and provided for information only.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99414: **All LSs from N1 since TSG_N#5.**

CONTENT: Not presented to the plenary, and provided for information only.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

5.1.2 Questions for Advice and Decisions from N1.

No contributions for this agenda item.

5.1.3 Approval of Contributions from N1.

NP-99454: **CR on removal of CN procedures from 03.22 (03.22 split) (Work Item TEI).**
Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CR agreed by 03.22 split drafting group and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for information only.

Reason for Change: Traditionally 03.22 deals with both AS cell selection (GSM only) and NAS PLMN selection and location registration (GSM & UMTS) procedures.

For R99 this is not acceptable, as there would be a mismatch of concepts either in GSM 03.22 defining UMTS CN procedures or UMTS 23.022 defining GSM only cell selection procedures.

To overcome this problem a split is proposed in this CR together with a linked document.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99455: **Proposed TS 23.122 NAS Functions related to Mobile Station (MS) in idle mode (03.22 & 23.022 split).** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This proposed TS have not been presented to any TSG plenary before.

The contents of the proposed TS are copied over from 03.22 V 8.2.0, which has been used as the template for the split. The intention has been that no functional changes should be caused by the split and the only modifications to the meaning of the text are cases where there has been a clear contradiction or redundant/incorrect text has existed in the specification.

The principle has been that common CN related issues like PLMN selection and location registration procedures have been defined in UMTS 23.xxx (23.122 is being proposed). These procedures are applicable to GSM and UMTS.

GSM related cell selection issues are covered in 03.22 and there is a 03.22 CR linked with this document proposing to remove CN items from 03.22. The remaining cell selection procedures cover only GSM cell selection.

The section numbering has been kept as it is in 03.22 for external references. For the new specification the sections have been renumbered to eliminate deleted sections. References have been corrected in both 03.22 and 23.xxx.

The reason why it is presented here is that this urgent change needs to be implemented at the same time as other R99 CRs on 03.22 and 23.022 are being implemented.

No change to releases before R99 is proposed.

After the split there will be GSM cell selection specification in 03.22 and GSM + UMTS MS NAS idle mode procedures in 23.122. This makes 23.022 redundant and if the split is approved then 23.022 should be deleted.

DISCUSSION: It has since been confirmed that the TS number 23.122 is available, and can be allocated to this specification.

RESULT: **Although other bodies should both reference to specific sections within our specification, this is NOT the case for Type approval and test specification referencing so care must be taken on this issue**

➤ [CN Plenary agrees in principle to the split of 03.22](#)

- [CN APPROVES the TS 23.133 v0.0.0 to v3.0.0](#)
- [CRs will be made to 23.133 v3.0.0 and the resulting version will be 3.1.0.](#)

NP-99448: CRs on Work Item Multicall. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CR to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

Reason for Change: In the R99 core network shall allow a ME to handle more than one bearer service simultaneously. For this case, a terminal can be considered 'busy' when it is using all the possible parallel bearers and it can not receive any calls using new bearers. This is equivalent to the case when the ME not supporting multicall is using one bearer.

DISCUSSION: Questions raised as to the correct handling of Multicall and possible interaction with supplementary services. Possible problems with coordination with other N-SWGs.
Requirement to clarify the interworking between Call waiting and Multicall before such CRs can be approved.

This CR is based on the agreed working assumption that for R99 the number of voice calls is limited to one and is alignment with the stage 1 description.

There are many open issues particularly for N2 including a stage 2 description for Multicall.

Advisable to put this CR on hold until the requirements to the other working groups are clear. Some resistance to this idea and the implementation of Multicall for R99 has not yet been clarified.

- [N1 will work in conjunction with the NSS ad hoc Multicall activity to progress with this CR.](#)

RESULT: The CR was **NOT APPROVED** and the issue is **REFERRED** back to N1 for further refinement.

NP-99458: TR 23.972, Version 0.0.3 for Multimedia Telephony. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This TR is presented to the plenary for information.

This document collects the requirements and working assumptions for multimedia for release 99. The description is at a level of detail, which is required in the detailed procedure design in N1 and N3. The document covers the CS as well as the PS multimedia services; however, with focus on CS.

The target release for the Multimedia specifications is (in general) R99, and the specifications apply to UMTS as well as GSM.

DISCUSSION: **Norbert;** N3 has dealt with these issues, and *fall back at call set-up* can be handled in R99, but the *swap during the call* cannot be achieved and this element should be delayed until R00.

There are some contentious issues on this TR and it cannot be used as a base for future work in its current state. It is in the process of e-mail review by N1.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** and remains as **v0.0.3**.

NP-99449: CR to 24.008 on Work Item Multimedia. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CR to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

Reason for Change: The existing GSM bearer capability is required to be enhanced to provide new services under UMTS. This document proposes new code points for new services.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99456: **CR001r2 to 23.009 / work item GSM-UMTS interworking.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval. Due to changes which covers the whole document, a presentation paper for the spec is also attached.

Reason for Change: To cover all handover scenarios in both 2G and 3 systems.

Note: There is some ongoing discussion within S2 but CN is not aware of the outcome. It should be noted that this area is not yet functionally frozen. In the future there may be a requirement to have correctional CRs.

This is still a R99 CR and subsequent changes to the working assumptions for 2G/3G interworking (eg due to discussion in S2) and the relevant specs are allowed in R99.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99445: **CRs on Work Item GSM-UMTS interworking.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "20" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 20 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99440: **TR 23.814 on Work Item MS Classmark.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains TR agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval. Related CRs in **NP-99447**.

DISCUSSION: Note that being a 23.8xx number, the report will not be published and remains within CN only. N1 agrees with this situation.

RESULT: The TR was **APPROVED** and will be updated to v3.0.0.

NP-99447: **CRs on Work MS Classmark.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "3" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 3 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99457: **TR 23.913 V 1.0.0 on Turbocharger.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains the Turbo-Charger Technical Report presented to CN plenary for information and discussion.

DISCUSSION: N1 has deduced that Turbo-Charger cannot be included in R99. Further analysis is required for the inclusion of this work item for R00.

The document relates to NP-99505.

As there was no consensus within the N1 group, this document is not presented for approval.

RESULT: The TR was **NOTED**.

NP-99505: **Turbo-Charger in Release 00.** Presented by Iain Sharpe of Nortel Networks.

CONTENT: Turbo-Charger may not be feasible for Release 99, but Nortel Networks views Turbo-Charger as an important feature for Release 00. Several of the disadvantages and open issues listed in the TR will no longer exist when Turbo-Charger is applied to the Release

00 architecture currently being defined within S2. Therefore, it is proposed that the feasibility study on Turbo-Charger continue within CN for Release 00.

DISCUSSION: If we move Turbocharger to R00, there may be other solutions to those proposed under the existing turbocharger description.

- [It is agreed by N plenary that Turbocharger is not to be included in R99, and should be moved to R00.](#)
- [It is possible that the scope of the solution may change in R00 depending on the architecture used \(all IP\).](#)
- [It is expected that CN have a clear idea of Turbocharger solution for R00 by the spring CN#7 plenary](#)

RESULT: The document was **DISCUSSED**.

RELATED LS

NP-99531: LS to S2 on the Turbocharger.

DISCUSSION: Due to the lack of time and disagreement between member companies, the wording of the LS could not be agreed in the meeting

RESULT: The LS was **NOT AGREED**.

NP-99442: CRs on Work Item EDGE. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CR to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99451: CRs on Work Item Security. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CR to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99450: CRs on Work Item QoS. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "2" CRs to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99459: CR048r1/ 24.008 on Paging Response in UMTS/ GSM-UMTS interworking. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: The CR as presented knowing that it should be rejected at the plenary. There is a better solution being proposed by SMG2 that makes this CR redundant.

RESULT: The CR was **NOT APPROVED**.

NP-99441: CRs Work Item CC related items. Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "2" CRs one to 24.007 and one to 24.008 agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

Intention is to increase the number of simultaneous calls/sessions from the present 7, the TI value needs to be increased.

DICSUSSION: The motivation for this change was stimulated by a liaison to N1 from S2, subsequently produced by the N1 chairman.

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99443: **CRs on Work Item GPRS.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "22" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

SMG CRs (04.64 R99) are agreed here and approved via e-mail afterwards.

CR 011 to 23.003 on "Introduction of Reserved Service Labels in the APN" duplicates work already done within N2, and this cannot be approved within this document

Note: CR A060 to 04.65 has incorrect category.

RESULT: 21 of the 22 CRs were **APPROVED**. CR 011 to 23.003 is taken out of the pack and **NOT APPROVED**.

NP-99446: **CRs on Work Item LCS.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "7" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: There were objections to the CR A001r2 to 09.31 at the SMG 30bis meeting.

09.08 only has CRs for R98.

➤ [Nothing has yet been done for R99 and the mirror CRs are required to be produced. The interested parties are invited to study the inter-MSC handover issue, and produce the necessary CRs.](#)

NOTE: 29.008 for R99 does not exist at this time. Also The ownership of 09.08 is not clear, N1 or SMG2?

RESULT: 6 of the 7 CRs were **APPROVED**. CR A001r2 to 09.31 is taken out of the pack and **REVISED** to NP-99538.

B REVISED **B**

NP-99538: **Revised CR A001r2 to 09.31 on Work Item LCS.**

CONTENT: Same content as the original CR to 09.31, but removing all references to segmentation.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99506: **CRs to work item LCS not presented to CN1.** Presented by Stephen Hayes.

CONTENT: This document contains "2" CRs agreed by (Siemens, Nokia, Ericsson, Nortel et.al, and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

Minor changes since being seen by N1 to exclude SMG2 parts. The technical parts relating to N1 were seen and agreed by N1.

RESULT: The 2 CRS were **APPROVED**.

NP-99452: **CRs on Work Item TEI.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "4" CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 4 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99453: **CRs on Work Item PCS 1900 harmonization.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains “2” CRs agreed by TSG_N WG1 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99444: **CR on Work Item EDGE/ source SMG2.** Presented by N1 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains “1” CRs not presented to TSG_N WG1 and forwarded directly to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval. It was approved by SMG2 and forwarded to TSGN WG1.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99508: **CR 002 to 24.034 on Link Adaptation for ECSD.** Presented by Peter Kobriger of Ericsson.

CONTENT: This document contains “1” CRs not presented to TSG_N WG1 and forwarded directly to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval. It was approved by SMG2 and forwarded to TSGN WG1.

This CR was presented to the N plenary, as there were concerns about the inclusion of this work in R99.

Reason for Change: The procedures for Link Adaptation between 8-PSK coding schemes and 8-PSK coding scheme and GMSK coding scheme is currently unspecified

DISCUSSION: Also related to the Change presented in **NP-99509**

The CR is to be examined by N1 and presented to the next N plenary meeting. If it is a single issue **NP-99508** and **NP-99509** must be merged into a single CR. Nokia and Ericsson will do the merging.

➤ [The merged CR is applicable for R99](#)

RESULT: The CR was **POSTPONED until N#7 meeting**

NP-99509: **CR to Work item EDGE not presented to CN1.** Presented by Hannu.

CONTENT: This document contains “1” CR to 23.004 not presented to TSG_N WG1 as such, but a similar with same contents but older spec reference was agreed in SMG3 and not brought up to the plenary afterwards. This is forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

Reason for Change: 4. Main concepts; 5.1 Air Interface; 5.2.1.1 Mobile originated call establishment, Figure 3: Mobile originated call establishment; 5.2.1.2 Mobile terminated call establishment, Figure 4: Mobile terminated call establishment; new section 5.2.5 Link Adaptation for ECSD.

DISCUSSION: The CR is to be examined by N1 and presented to the next N plenary meeting. If it is a single issue **NP-99508** and **NP-99509** must be merged into a single CR. Nokia and Ericsson will do the merging.

➤ [The merged CR is applicable for R99](#)

RESULT: The CR was **POSTPONED until N#7 meeting**.

5.2 TSG_CN WG2 (N2).

5.2.1 Report from N2.

- NP-99473:** **Status report of TSG-N2 to TSG-N plenary meeting #6.** Presented by Ian Park, N2 Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This report can be regarded as an executive summary of the work of N2, N2A and N2B since the last N plenary meeting.
- DISCUSSION:** Questions on the **Multicall** status, that is not aligned between the Phoenix meeting report and the N2 status report. Response from Yun-Chao Hu that the outstanding issues were identified after the Phoenix meeting. Outstanding issues include relating to the supplementary services area.
- QoS task group:** was initiated and will work on QoS issues with the protocols.
- Object Identifiers:** some debate on the best way to proceed.
- New object identifies
 - New ETSI object identifier
 - Agreed to use the 3rd option of an ETSI O.D in the mobile domain.
- Camel control of VoIP:** Comment on Camel control of VoIP: the intention is to send a proposal to SA for inclusion of VoIP in CAMEL Ph4 only.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED**.
- NP-99470:** **N2 meeting report from Galway.** Presented by Ian Park, N2 Chairman.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED**.
- NP-99474:** **N2 meeting report from Phoenix.** Presented by Ian Park, N2 Chairman.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED**.
- NP-99472:** **All Agreed LSs from N2 since TSG_N#5.** Presented by Ian Park, N2 Chairman.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED**.
- NP-99475:** **All Agreed LSs from N2A since TSG_N#5.** Presented by Ian Park, N2 Chairman.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED**.

5.2.2 Questions for Advice and Decisions from N2.

5.2.3 Approval of Contributions from N2.

- NP-99489:** **CRs to GSM 03.16, 3G TS 23.016 (Work Item CAMEL Phase 2).** Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains 2 CRs on Work Item CAMEL Phase 2 agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 2 CRS were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99471:** **CRs to 3G TS 23.078 & 29.078 (Work Item CAMEL phase3).** Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 2 CRs to 3G TS 23.078 agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

The proposal is to approve the 2 CRS and replace the original versions with the resultant versions of the specifications.

Some concerns raised by NTT DoCoMo that certain open issues are not covered by this CR. This should be covered in the N2 W.I status sheets in **NP-99519**. IT is proposed that **NP-99519** be revised to incorporate any open issues that have been missed in the initial draft.

N2 has to complete the open issues remaining for CAMEL Phase 3 for the CN#7 meeting.

Possible concerns over the correct version of the CR. The word/PDF revision marks are not the same. **The word version is the master documents for the CR.**

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99490: **CRs to 3G TS 23.008, 23.016, 23.018, 23.079, 29.002 (Work Item CAMEL Phase 3).** Presented by Steffen N2A Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 5 CRs on Work Item CAMEL Phase 3 agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 5 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99510: **TR 21.978, Version 2.0.0 on CAMEL Control of VoIP Services.** Presented by Steffen, N2A chairman.

CONTENT: Reports on the feasibility of using CAMEL to control Voice over IP Services based on either H.323 or SIP.

Scope: The purpose of this Technical Report is to study the feasibility of a core network CAMEL server controlling voice services carried by VoIP within a GPRS PDP Context using:

- 1) An architecture based on ITU-T, H.323 family of recommendations.
- 2) Architecture based on IETF SIP specifications.

DISCUSSION: Concerns that this not be the only solution.

Clarifications:

H.323 and SIP were the only protocols considered

CAMEL Ph.3 can control GPRS session management

Evolution of CAMEL: GPRS interworking can be evolved for 3G packet solutions

RESULT: The TR was **REVISED** to NP-99561

NP-99495: **CRs to 3G TS 29.002 (Work Item Long Forwarded to Number).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CR on Work Item Long Forwarded to Number agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: Postpone approval of this CR until the companions CRs are available.

➤ **N2 are asked to create a full set of related CRs for presentation to the CN#7 meeting.**

RESULT: The CRs was **REFERRED** back to N2 for further refinement.

- NP-99491:** **CR to 3G TS 29.002 (Work Item Follow Me).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains 1 CR on Work Item Follow Me agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- DISCUSSION:** S1 now confirm that Follow Me is now a 3G feature and not a GSM feature.
- RESULT:** **The CR was APPROVED.**
-
- NP-99478:** **TS 23.119, Version 1.0.0 Gateway Location Register.** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This is the stage 2 specification for the Gateway Location Register (GLR). The stage 3 protocol (MAP and GTP) specifications for GLR are also presented to the TSG CN#6 for approval.
- DISCUSSION:** It is noted that there are no contentious issues. The report is functionally frozen.
 The SDL charts for location management will be added in order to align with TS 23.012. This addition will be completed before TSG CN#7.
 It is the proposal to APPROVE this TS at the CN#7 meeting once the missing SDLS have been provided. The TS will then be updated to a v3.0.0.
 LS was sent from NSS to N2 but was not received for the Phoenix meeting.
- [CCBS is noted as an open issue for the GLR.](#)
- RESULT:** **The TS was NOTED.**
-
- NP-99481:** **TS 29.120, Version 1.0.0.** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This is a MAP protocol specification for the GLR, which is a delta document to TS 29.002 and includes only descriptions specific to the GLR. The document was originally presented to plenary for information and approval.
- DISCUSSION:** CCBS open issue may have impact on this document.
As the TS is presented v1.0.0 for the 1st time to CN plenary it is simply noted for information, and it is expected to be presented to TSG_N#7 meeting.
- RESULT:** **The TS was NOTED.**
-
- NP-99479:** **GPRS Tunneling Protocol (GTP) specification for GLR (3G TS 29.119 version 1.0.0).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This is a GTP protocol part for GLR stage3 specifications, which is a delta document to TS 29.060 and includes only description specific to the GLR.
- DISCUSSION:** **As the TS is presented v1.0.0** for the 1st time to CN plenary it is simply noted for information, and it is expected to be presented to TSG_N#7 meeting.
- RESULT:** **The TS was NOTED.**
-
- NP-99492:** **CRs to GSM 09.02, 09.60, 3G TS 29.002 (Work Item GPRS).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains 8 CRs on Work Item GPRS agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** **The 8 CRs were APPROVED.**
-
- NP-99493:** **CR to 3G TS 29.060 (Work Item GTP Enhancements).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CR on Work Item GTP Enhancements agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99494: **CRs to GSM 03.03, 03.07, 03.08, 03.16, 09.02, 3G TS 23.003, 23.007, 23.008, 23.016, 29.002 (Work Item Location Services)** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 10 CRs on Work Item Location Services agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: **Note:** The subject of CR A034 to 03.03 in the cover sheet is incorrect although the contents are correct.

RESULT: The 10 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99496: **CRs to 3G TS 23.008, 23.016, 23.018, 29.002 (Work Item Multicall)**. Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 4 CRs on Work Item Multicall agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: Following the discussions during the Multicall ad hoc meeting it is considered that the CR be put on hold to ensure the content is stable

RESULT: The CRs was **NOT APPROVED** and are **REFERRED** back to N2 for further refinement.

NP-99480: **TS 23.153, Version 1.0.0**. Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: The TS describes the technical realization of Out-of-Band Transcoder Control (OoBTC). OoBTC is a feature to enhance the speech quality and to save bandwidth in mobile-to-mobile calls. No transcoder shall be necessary for monitoring and controlling issues. The mobiles shall indicate supported codecs to the terminating MSC. The terminating MSC shall select a codec supported by both mobiles. The information about the selected codec is transported to the mobiles and the bearers are established accordingly to carry the call.

Possible contentious issue with the requirement for new CC message might be needed to indicate the selected codec to the MS (TSG-CN WG1, CR to 3G TS 24.008).

DISCUSSION: SA2 have a number of issues with this work, which are suspected not to have been resolved.

The final approval of this TS is dependent on work on bearer independent call control within the ITU_T SG11. However it is understood that this work is almost stable within ITU-T. The document is technically stable and only editorial modifications are allowed and it is expected that the work will be approved in June 2000.

RESULT: The TS was **NOTED**.

NP-99498: **CRs to 3G TS 23.007, 23.008, 29.002 (Work Item Security)** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 4 CRs on Work Item Security agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 4 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99477: **TS 23.116, Version 1.0.0 on Super-Charger**. Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This Technical Specification specifies the stage 2 description of the Super-Charger that provides a mechanism to reduce the signaling traffic associated with mobility.

There are no outstanding issues and no contentious issues with this work.

DISCUSSION:

Clarification: GLR optimizes inter-network signaling whilst the Super-charger can also perform intra-network signaling. The GLR and super-charger are complimentary and can be used in the same network although the advantages of this configuration are minimal.

Modifications may be required in the GLR to enable it to function with super-charger but this requires further study.

➤ [N2B are requested to study the interaction of the GLR and the super-charger.](#)

The TS was presented as a v1.0.0 and the expectation is that this TS will be approved at TSG_N#7 and upgraded to v3.0.0.

RESULT: The TS was **NOTED**.

NP-99500: **CRs to 3G TS 23.008, 23.012, 23.016, 23.018, 29.002 (Work Item Super Charger).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 6 CRs on Work Item Super Charger agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: Concerns on approving the CRs before the stage 2 document is approved.

➤ [It is proposed to approve these CRs but as a result of modifications to the stage 2 document, we may expect additional modification CRs to these specifications following the study of interaction between the GLR and super-charger.](#)

RESULT: The 6 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99501: **CRs to 3G TS 23.012, 29.002 (Work Item TE&I).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 3 CRs on Work Item Technical Enhancements and Improvements agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 3 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99488: **CR to 3G TS 29.010 (Work Item: 2G-3G Handover).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CR on Work Item 2G-3G Handover agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99497: **CRs to 3G TS 29.002, 29.060 (Work Item QoS Enhancements).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains 2 CRs on Work Item QoS Enhancements agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 2 CR were **APPROVED**.

NP-99499: **CRs to GSM 09.10, 3G TS 29.010 (Work Item SoLSA).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.

- CONTENT:** This document contains 1 CRs on Work Item SoLSA agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- DISCUSSION:** The R98 CR with the R99 equivalent is available in **NP-99553**.
- RESULT:** The document was **WITHDRAWN** due to the duplication in **NP-99553**
- NP-99553: 2 CRs to GSM 09.10, 3G TS 29.010 (Work Item SoLSA).** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains 2 CRs on Work Item SoLSA agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99502: CRs to GSM 09.02, 3G TS 29.002 (Work Item USSD)** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains 3 CRs on Work Item USSD agreed by TSG_N WG2 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 3 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99476: Proposed Work Item: GTP Enhancements.** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains the work item description for GTP enhancements.
- With the introduction of 3G services there is a need for some enhancements to the GPRS Tunneling Protocol (GTP) specified in TS 3G 29.060. For example, GTP shall be able to tunnel real-time multimedia user flows in an efficient way.
- Another requirement is that, in the 3G context, the user plane part of GTP (GTP-U) shall also be used for tunneling of user data over the lu interface between RNC and SGSN. This requires a clearer separation of the user plane part from the signaling plane part (GTP-C).
- There are some related CRS in **NP-99493**. The approval of the remaining CRs that are required to complete this work area is expected for TSG_N#7.
- RESULT:** The Work Item was **APPROVED**.
- NP-99487: CR 013r1 23.003 on Introduction of Reserved Service Labels in the APN.** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** **Reason to change.** The PDP type IP has been extended to allow the separation of PDP context activation and ISP Environment setup. These extensions support e.g. DHCP end-to-end and Mobile IP.
- In order to help automatic APN selection, the concept of Reserved Service Label is introduced, which indicates that a special service is supported by the APN. The service offering is not exclusively coupled to the reserved APN: all APNs can support the new services if configured to do so by the operator.
- DISCUSSION:** This CR was seen and agreed by N2. However a counter proposal is presented in NP-99524 and NP-99525. It is agreed that NP-99525 replace NP-99487.
- RESULT:** The CR was **WITHDRAWN**.
- NP-99524: Definition of Reserved Service Labels.** Presented by Nortel Networks.
- CONTENT:** The document contains support material for the alternative CR provided in **NP-99525**. The CR proposes the service using a Reserved Service Label and the core network shall determine the most appropriate GGSN to provide the service. However, it will

continue to be a requirement to support DNS resolution of APNs for the case where there is no prior operator agreement.

DISCUSSION: This CR has been presented to the author of the original CR in NP-99487, who agrees with the concept.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99525: **Rev. CR 013r1 23.003 on Introduction of Reserved Service Labels in the APN.** Presented by Iain Sharpe of Nortel Networks.

CONTENT: Contains a CR to 23.003 on Reserved Service Labels in the APN.

DISCUSSION: This CR has been presented to the author of the original CR in NP-99487

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**

NP-99485: **CR 032 to 29.002 on Improving charging efficiency.** Presented by Mikko of Nokia.

DISCUSSION: This CR has sent to the N2 e-mail reflector and a number of comments – mainly editorial have been received

RESULT: The CR was **NOTED and sent back to N2**

➤ [It is agreed that this is a R99 issue. It will be studied by N2, and it is expected that the CR be presented for approval to TSG N#7.](#)

NP-99486: **CR 078 29.002on Introduction of Reserved Service Labels in the APN.** Presented by Mikko of Nokia.

CONTENT: Contains a CR to 29.002 for Improving GPRS charging efficiency.

Reason for change: Normally, the SGSN and the GGSN collect charging information on MSs which they are serving. The SGSN collects charging information for each attached MS and for each active PDP context. The GGSN collects charging information for each active PDP context.

Alternative charging mechanisms, such as prepaid or flat rate billing, do not require generating charging information (CDRs) in the SGSN and in the GGSN. Sending CDRs for such MSs and/or PDP contexts to Charging Gateway Functionality increases load in the communication channel.

This CR introduces a method of decreasing the load in the communication channel. CDRs may not be sent for MSs and/or PDP contexts which are not liable for charging. If the feature is not supported in the SGSN and in the GGSN, the SGSN and the GGSN will send CDRs normally. It is operator-specific whether charging information is collected for those MSs and/or PDP contexts which are not liable for charging. For roaming subscribers, CDRs should be generated.

At attach or at inter-SGSN routing area update, the packet domain subscription data is transferred to the SGSN. The packet domain subscription data includes the subscribed charging characteristics. When creating a PDP context or when updating the PDP context, the SGSN copies the charging characteristics of the PDP context from the subscribed charging characteristics. At inter-SGSN routing area update, the subscribed charging characteristics are transferred from the old SGSN to the new SGSN in the MM context.

DISCUSSION: This CR has sent to the N2 e-mail reflector and a number of comments – mainly editorial have been received

➤ [It is agreed that this is a R99 issue. It will be studied by N2, and it is expected that the CR be presented for approval to TSG N#7.](#)

RESULT: The CR was **NOTED and REFERRED** back to N2 for further refinement.

NP-99507: CR 033 to 23.078 on Correction of the direction of Int_Continue after sending Int_O/T-Abandon. Presented by **Sumio**.

CONTENT: Reason to change. N2-99J49 was agreed at the N2 Phoenix meeting to arm DP O-Abandon or T_Abandon as EDP_R. However the proposed SDLs were not correctly described. The signal Int_Continue should be from the right, the gsmSSF, to which the previous Int_O/T_Abandon has been sent, not from the left, which indicates other entities.

DISCUSSION: The document has been distributed to the CN / CN2 mailing lists and no comments have been received.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

5.3 TSG_CN WG1 (N3).

5.3.1 Report from N3.

NP-99420: Status Report from N3. Presented by Norbert, N3 Chairman.

CONTENT: This report can be regarded as an executive summary of the work of N3 since the last N plenary meeting.

DISCUSSION: The Status report was noted here and questions for clarification taken in section 5.3.2

Comments to item 2.2 Facsimile:

Comments to item 2.6 Multimedia:

Comments to item 2.7 Modem and ISDN Interworking for GPRS:

Comments to item 3.2 Transfer of Specifications:

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information..

NP-99421: Report of CN3 #6 Meeting. Presented by Norbert, N3 Chairman.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

NP-99422: Report of CN3 #6 Meeting. Presented by Norbert, N3 Chairman.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

NP-99423: All Outgoing LSs from TSG_N3 since TSG_N#5 Plenary. Presented by Norbert, N3 Chairman.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

5.3.2 Questions for Advice and Decisions from N3.

NP-99420: Status Report from N3. Presented by Norbert, N3 Chairman.

CONTENT: This report can be regarded as an executive summary of the work of N3 since the last N plenary meeting.

DISCUSSION: Comments were made to the following sections of the report.

Facsimile: N plenary endorses the N3 decision to provide separate solutions for GSM and UMTS. GSM 03.46 will be further maintained in GSM, whereas a UMTS solution will be specified in TS 23.146.

Multimedia: N plenary endorses the N plenary decision to have 3 steps for the specification of circuit switched multimedia:

Modem and ISDN Interworking for GPRS: The work item Modem and ISDN Interworking for GPRS is agreed by N-plenary to be deleted.

Transfer of Specifications: N Plenary endorses the transfer / deletion of specifications as proposed by N3.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

5.3.3 Approval of Contributions from N3.

NP-99428: **CR to 03.46 for Introduction of Real-time non-transparent FAX in UMTS**, Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: The document contains a CR to 03.46 to show the changes required to create 23.146 v1.0.0 as provided in **NP-99425**. The CR was provided to the Plenary only for information.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

NP-99425: **TS23.146, Version 1.0.0 for Real time Non transparent FAX specification**. Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: Circuit switched type of Real time Non transparent FAX specification.

This specification is applied to UMTS only and has relation to 3G TS 27.001 and 3G TS 27.003.

DISCUSSION: It is expected that this TS be approved at TSG_N#7 meeting to be updated v3.0.0

It is agreed that this is to remain in R99.

As there is only one N3 meeting before the next N#7 meeting, e-mail discussion on the TS is already underway.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99435: **CRs to 3G Work Item Real Time Non-transparent fax**, Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "2" CRs on Work Item Real Time NT Fax agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**

NP-99426: **3G TR 23.910 V1.0.0**. Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: This TR records open issues and agreed understanding and solutions to be used for the provision of CS data bearer services.

Outstanding Issues: Handover from GSM to UMTS. Lower rates for NT data.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99439: **CRs to 3G Work Item CS Data Services in UMTS**. Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "3" CRs on Work Item CS Data Services in UMTS agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 3 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99429: **CRs to 3G Work Item Access to ISPs** Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: This document contains "1" CR on Work Item Access to ISPs agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

- NP-99430: CRs to 3G Work Item FTM.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “2” CRs on Work Item FTM agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99431: CRs to 3G Work Item GPRS.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “12” CRs on Work Item GPRS agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 12 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99432: CRs to 3G Work Item GPRS Mobile Interworking.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “1” CR on Work Item GPRS Mobile Interworking agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The CRs was **APPROVED**.
- NP-99433: CRs to 3G Work Item High Speed Circuit Switched Data.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “4” CR on Work Item HSCSD agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 4 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99434: CRs to 3G Work Item Multimedia.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “2” CRs on Work Item Multimedia agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- RESULT:** The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99436: CRs to 3G Work Item Service clean up.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “5” CRs on Work Item Service clean up agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- The CR to 03.10 v8.0.0 is a to GSM only specification, hence agreement is sought from TSG_N and approval from SMG3.*
- RESULT:** The 5 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99437: CRs to 3G Work Item PIAFS.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “2” CRs on Work Item PIAFS agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval..
- RESULT:** The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.
- NP-99438: CRs to 3G Work Item Technical Improvements and Enhancements.** Presented by N3 chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document contains “5” CRs on Work Item TEI agreed by TSG_N WG3 and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.
- Note:** CR 005 to 29.007 has not been agreed within N3 as there are some open issues n this CR.
- RESULT:** 4 CRs were **APPROVED**. The CR005 to 29.007 is **WITHDRAWN**
- NP-99424: Proposed Work Item description sheet for Circuit Switched Multimedia Features for R00.** Presented by N3 chairman.

CONTENT: Usability, user friendliness and compatibility with fixed network multimedia terminals are increased in the R00 CS multimedia bearer service by adding new features, e.g. start with speech and swap between speech and multimedia.

DISCUSSION: LUCENT SONERA and NEC add their names to the list of the supporting companies.
The work item content needs to be limited. The present document has too much room for open issues.

The document was redrafted to provide a clarification of the scope of the Work item.

RESULT: The document was **REVISED to NP-99535**.

B REVISED B

NP-99535: Rev. Work Item description sheet for **Circuit Switched Multimedia Features for R00**. Presented by N3 chairman.

RESULT: The document was **APPROVED**.

5.4 TSG_CN WG SS Ad Hoc (NSS).

5.4.1 Report from NSS.

NP-99521: **Status Report for NSS Ad Hoc**. Presented by Steffen NSS Ad hoc Interim Chairman.

CONTENT: The TSG CN SS ad hoc meeting took place from 30 November to 02 December 1999 in Henley-on-Thames hosted by Nortel Networks. This contribution gives a summary report of the achievements of the SS ad hoc. Details can be found in the MCC report provided in **NP-99460**.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99460: **MCC Report from Henley Meeting**. Presented by Steffen NSS Ad hoc Interim Chairman.

CONTENT: Contains a draft meeting of the report which has yet to be seen and commented by the NSS Ad hoc delegates

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99465: **LSs send from NSS Ad Hoc since TSG_N#5**. Presented by Steffen NSS Ad hoc Interim Chairman.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

5.4.2 Questions for Advice and Decisions from NSS.

5.4.3 Approval of Contributions from NSS.

NP-99462: **CRs Work Item MSP phase 1**. Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This document contains 2 CRs agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 2 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99463: **CRs Work Item MSP phase 2**. Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This document contains 7 CRs agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 7 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99463: **CRs Work Item MSP phase 2.** Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This document contains 7 CRs agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The 7 CRs were **APPROVED**.

NP-99461: **TS GSM 03.94, Version 2.0.0 for Follow Me.** Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This TS describes the technical realization of the Follow-Me feature within the digital cellular telecommunications system. The Follow Me feature enables a mobile subscriber A to manipulate the Follow Me data of a remote party B in such a way that subsequent calls directed to remote party B will be forwarded to subscriber A.

The TS has been agreed to be re-transferred to 3GPP

RESULT: The TR was **APPROVED** and will be upgraded to **23.094 v3.0.0**.

NP-99464: **CRs Work Item USSD enhancement.** Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CR agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99563: **CR on Work Item LCS.**

CONTENT: This document contains 1 CRs for Release 98 agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: It is noted that there are some ASN.1 errors. These will be corrected with future CRs

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99564: **CR on Work Item LCS.**

CONTENT: This document contains 1 mirror CRs for Release 99 agreed by TSG_N SS ad hoc and forwarded to TSG_N Plenary meeting #6 for approval.

DISCUSSION: It is noted that there are some ASN.1 errors. These will be corrected with future CRs

RESULT: The CR was **APPROVED**.

NP-99565: **Some Thoughts on Multicall.** Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: The document details the NSS ad hoc chairman's thoughts on Multicall. It provides additional information to that giving in the Status report.

DISCUSSION: **Note:** The requirement for there user interrogation has been removed from the stage 1 document.

- **CN Working Assumption – MULTICALL is a Supplementary Service and a new code point will be allocated**
- **CN NSS Ad hoc are designated as the focal group to lead the work on Multicall**
- **Further study on the interaction with other supplementary services (such as call waiting) is required for both R99 and R00.**

Steffen to provide a position paper on this working assumption to be approved in this meeting.

The CRs on Multicall cannot be approved at this moment in time as they are considered incomplete following this discussion.

Open Issue. The requirement for Multicall to be subscriber controlled or not.

Requirement to call an ad hoc meeting for the MULTICALL activity – with the scope to discuss the 1st phase of R99 Multicall feature. The ad hoc will take place tonight and the objective is to discuss the document 565 and CRs in 448 & 496

RESULT: The document was **NOTED and DISCUSSED** at length.

5.5 TSG_CN VHE / OSA Ad Hoc Activity.

NP-99514: **Status Report from CN OSA Ad hoc.** Presented by Yun-Chao.Hu

CONTENT: This report reflects the activities performed by the 3GPP CN OSA Ad hoc.

It also includes a proposal from the CN OSA ad hoc group to initiate a new VHE/OSA activity either by creating a dedicated Working Group or creating a new WI in an existing Working Group.

DISCUSSION: The proposed OSA meeting plan was designed to avoid clashed with other CN SWG meetings where possible.

Some open security issues. S3 activity has more impact on the stage 2, but it would be useful to add the SA3 relationship to this status report.

Note: The Stage 2 OSA document will be provided to SA plenary in a v1.1.0 for information.

➤ [CN Plenary endorses the request to allow parallel development of the stage 2 & stage 3 specification's on OSA.](#)

➤ [CN Plenary encourages the co-operation between CN OSA Ad hoc the ETSI SPAN3 and ITU T SG.11 for the development of API protocols.](#)

NOTE: ITU-T coordination group was agreed as the communication path towards the ITU-T in the last TSG meetings #5. The OSA ad hoc will continue to use the CN ITU-T coordination group.

Note: there exists no liaison channel between 3GPP and ITU-T. Member companies can however present input to ITU-T.

➤ [CN Plenary agrees to the initiation of the OSA activity within a dedicated ad hoc Working Group. The stand alone group will run at least until CN#7, and then it's existence and allocation of work will be revisited.](#)

➤ [Yun-Chao Hu will continue to be convener of this group](#)

➤ [CN encourages interested parties to provide input to the group, and all contentious issues should be resolved for the CN#7 meeting.](#)

➤ [If the unresolved issues cannot be cleared by the March meeting – there may be a decision to postpone OSA from R99 to R00.](#)

Nokia requested that R99 should be completed for TSG N#7 meeting and not delayed beyond that time. Questions were raised on the term 'complete'.

RESULT: The document was greatly **DISCUSSED**.

NP-99517: Meeting report of OSA Meeting#2.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99518: Meeting report of OSA Meeting#1.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99552: All LSs sent from the OSA meetings.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99551: **Measures for Finalizing VHE/OSA in Release 99.** A document produced by the joined minds of Vodafone, Telia, Telenor, and Ericsson representatives. Presented by Ian Park of Vodafone Airtouch.

CONTENTS: The document produced by provides a brief assessment of the open and contentious issues for VHE/OSA and measures are proposed for advancing those issues.

A related LS will be sent to S1 and S2 in **NP-99540**

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** and **FORWARDED** to OSA Ad hoc and S1 and S2 by the originating companies.

RELATED LS

NP-99540: **Draft LS to S1 and S2 on Realization of VHE/OSA for Release 1999.**

CONTENT: This scope of the OSA API will be reassessed for completion at the next TSG CN #07 Plenary (March 2000).

This workplan requires that the open issues within TS 22.121 and 23.127 need urgent resolution. Therefore, TSG CN would urge the responsible WGs to resolve them as soon as possible.

DISCUSSION Addition of text: TSG#7 plenary will decide whether VHE/OSA with reduced scope is stable enough for inclusion R99 or whether it should be deferred to R00.

Addition of N2, T2 and T3 in cc list.

RESULT: The document was **REVISED** to **NP-99580**.

Editors Note: what ever happened to 580

5.6 TSG_CN ITU-T Co-ordination Activity.

NP-99542: **RefinedTerms of Reference for the ITU-T Co-ordination group**

CONTENT: The terms of reference produced at CN#5 and revised SA#5. The document shows the modifications from the original ToR.

DISCUSSION: The permissible communication method to ITU can only be via member companies. This may be revisited in the future depending on requirements.

Individual WGs should not communicate directly with ITU

ToR requires refinement.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**.

NP-99566: **Main Results of ITU-T SG11 meeting in November, 1999.** Presented by Masami YABUSAKI.

CONTENT: This paper describes the main results of ITU-T SG11 meeting which was held in November/December, 1999, in Geneva.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

5.7 Review of TSG_CN Work Program.

5.7.1 Work Items / Work Tasks in TSG_CN and SWGs

NP-99541: List of all Work Items for TSG_CN.

CONTENT: Document produced by MCC that lists all of the Work Items under the CN domain. The document shows which SWGs are responsible for the W.Is and gives an indication of expected completion date.

DISCUSSION: Due to limitation of time the document was not presented in the TSG_CN meeting. However the Work Item sheet was updated offline to be presented to the TSG_SA plenary meeting #6.

△ **The W.I list will be maintained and produced by MCC at each Plenary meeting for review.**

RESULT: The document was **PROVIDED** for **INFORMATION**.

NP-99482: Completed Work Item Status sheets for R99.

RESULT: The document was **WITHDRAWN**.

NP-99484: List of all Work Items for TSG_CN2.

RESULT: The document was **WITHDRAWN**.

5.7.2 Release 1999 and Release 2000

NP-99427: List of all Work Items currently treated in N3.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission forms for all of the Work Items CN3 has to contribute (complete, delayed and/or postponed). Comments were provided to each submission form within the document **NP-99427**:

Circuit Switched Bearers in UMTS- Complete March (except BS 30 NT) - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

Real-time Fax – Completion March 2000- Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

Frame Tunneling Mode (FTM) - Complete - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

PIAFS - Complete - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

Access to ISPs and Intranets – Wireless / remote access to LANs - Complete - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

Real-time Multimedia (CN3 part only) – delete b) swap between speech and multimedia (R00). This summary sheet is to be merged with the N1 submission form in **NP-99416**.

Modem and ISDN Interworking for GPRS - Deleted - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

Service clean-up – Completion March 2000 - Accepted to be forwarded to SA Plenary.

RESULT: The document was **DISCUSSED**.

NP-99416: **Multimedia as R99 Work Item.** Presented by N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form for Work Item Multimedia within N1.

RESULT: The document was **MERGED** with the N3 submission sheet on Multimedia in **NP-99427**.

NP-99417: **GSM – UMTS Interworking and MM for UMTS as R99 Work Item.** Presented by N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form for Work Item GSM – UMTS Interworking and MM for UMTS within N1.

DISCUSSION: Outstanding on this W.I issues detailed in **NP-99411**

- [UMTS Interworking and MM for UMTS was agreed by CN plenary for late inclusion in R99](#)

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99411: **TSGN1 task list for GSM/UMTS interworking and MM in UMTS for R99.** Presented by N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: The document contains a detailed list of N1 open tasks required to include GSM / UMTS interworking and MM in UMTS for inclusion in R99.

DISCUSSION: CN acknowledges the list of open issues.

- [CN Plenary endorses the SA decision to deleted Anonymous Access](#)

RESULT: The document was **NOTED** for information.

NP-99418: **MS Classmark as R99 Work Item.** Presented by N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form for Work Item MS Classmark within N1.

The Work Item was agreed as complete with only editorials remaining.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99419: **Out of Band Transcoder Control (Transport of Codec Information).** Presented by N1 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form for Work Item Out of Band Transcoder Control within N1.

The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.

DISCUSSION: There are questions raised as to S4's opinion on this WI, and S2 related issues on the TRAU.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99557: **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Out-of-Band Transcoder Control from N2.**

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form for Work Item Out of Band Transcoder Control within N2.

DISCUSSION: It was agreed to merge the W.I summary sheet from N1 with the content for N2.

RESULT: The document was **MERGED** with N1s WID sheet in NP-99419 for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99519: **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / CAMEL Phase 3.** Presented by N2 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form Work Item CAMEL Phase 3 within N2.

The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.

DISCUSSION: Related document in **NP-99562**. The contents of this document are added to NP-99519 in a revised W.I sheet.

RESULT: The document was **REVISED** to NP-99545.

B REVISED B

- NP-99545:** **Rev. Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / CAMEL Phase 3.** Presented by N2 Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document provides the revised Release 1999 Submission form Work Item CAMEL Phase 3 within N2.
- RESULT:** The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.
-
- NP-99562:** **Proposed addition to NP-99519 (Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / CAMEL Phase 3).** Presented by NTT DoCoMo.
- CONTENT:** This document provides a *revised* Release 1999 Submission form Work Item CAMEL Phase 3 within N2.
- The expected completion of this work item is still shown as March 2000.*
- Additional task to be added to the outstanding issues list:
- Dialed service trigger criteria specification in 23.078 (4.2.1.2.2) needs to be revisited
- DISCUSSION:** The content is some what detailed for presentation to SA.
- RESULT:** The document was **NOTED** and **REFERRED N2A** for further study.
-
- NP-99520:** **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Call Forwarding Enhancements.** Presented by N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document provides Release 1999 Submission form Work Item Call Forwarding Enhancements within N2.
- The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.*
- DISCUSSION:** Addition of task for the investigation of **TIF** for long forwarded-to numbers.
- RESULT:** The document was **REVISED to NP-99545.**
-
- B REVISED B**
- NP-99546:** **Rev. Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Call Forwarding Enhancements.** Presented by N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** The content of the document is agreed to be merged with the content of **NP-99560.**
- RESULT:** The document was **MERGED in NP-99579** with NP-99560 content on Call Forwarding Enhancements.
-
- NP-99554:** **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Gateway Location Register.** Presented by N2B Chairman.
- CONTENT:** This document provides Release 1999 Submission form Work Gateway Location Register within N2.
- The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.*
- DISCUSSION:** Addition of GLR to Super-charger interaction to open issues.
- Addition of 29.119 and 29.129 to the list of affected specifications.
- Remove intra-network signaling.
- RESULT:** The document was **REVISED to NP-99547.**

B REVISED B

NP-99547: **Rev. Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Gateway Location Register.** Presented by N2B Chairman.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED**.

NP-99555: **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / GTP Evolution.** Presented by N2B Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form / GTP Evolution within N2.
The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99558: **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Security.** Presented by N2 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form Security within N2.
The expected completion of this work item is March 2000

DISCUSSION: There are contentious issues missing from the document.

These are generated by the lack of granularity on the definition of the Work Item 'Security'.

The W.I sheet in this document has an all or nothing approach. It was suggested to provide a more detailed analysis of which elements of the overall Work item can be completed for R99 and which must be delayed to R00.

It is unlikely that all elements of the Security work items will be complete for R99.

- [N1 and N2 are urged to provide a list of completed – non-completed sub areas for the Security work item.](#)
- [CN Must identify the security areas may lead to incompatibility problems and these are considered essential for R99. Other security sub-areas should be postponed to R00](#)
- [CN will decide at TSG N#7 which items are to be postponed to R00](#)

The more detailed analysis of Security and its sub-work areas is provided in **NP-99548** to be provided after this meeting.

RESULT: The document was **NOT AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99559: **Work Item Status Sheet for R99 / Super-charger.** Presented by N2 Chairman.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 1999 Submission form / super-charger within N2.
The expected completion of this work item is March 2000.

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99522: **Release 99 Submission Forms for TSG CN SS ad hoc related work items.**

RESULT: The document was **REVISED** to **NP-99560**.

B REVISED B

NP-99560: **Release 99 Submission Forms for TSG CN SS ad hoc related work items.**
Presented by Steffen.

CONTENT: This document provides Release 99 Submission Forms for TSG CN SS ad hoc related work items

- **Multiple Subscriber Profile, Phase 2** - *expected completion is March 2000.*
- **Follow Me** - *Completed at TSG_N#6.*
- **Call Forwarding Enhancements** - *expected completion is March 2000.*
- **USSD Enhancements** - *Completed at TSG_N#6.*

RESULT: The document was **AGREED** for presentation to SA plenary.

NP-99504: **Release 99 Finalization.** Presented by NTT DoCoMo.

CONTENT: This document contains the following proposal from NTT DoCoMo requesting the approval of the following principles to 'complete' R99 specifications.

- (1) For R99 specifications, CN WGs shall focus ONLY on the open issues identified at the CN#6 Plenary and corrective CRs.
- (2) Key open issues shall be solved at the WGs held in January 2000.
- (3) No further functionality/features shall be incorporated into R99 after CN#6 Plenary.

DISCUSSION: Item (1) should be modified to allow inclusion of problems discovered after CN#6.

- [In the period up to CN#7, CN shall concentrate to resolve the open issues and allow only corrective CRs for R99.](#)
- [During this period the priority must be given to R99 issues above R00.](#)
- [Only if there is remaining time shall R00 issues be studied.](#)
- [Problems on critical R99 issues that are raised in WG meetings should be reflected to the Plenary mail list to inform the other parties who may be involved.](#)

RESULT: The principles contained within the document were **AGREED** as resumed above.

5.8 Letters to Other Groups

5.9 Other Issues.

6 Technical Co-ordination with Others.

6.1 Other 3GPP TS_Groups.

6.2 Other bodies (e.g. SMG)

6.3 ITU.

7 Project Management.

7.1 Work Item Management.

7.2 Specifications within the TSG_CN Domain.

NP-99544: List of all specification for TSG_CN.

CONTENT: Document produced by MCC that lists all of the specifications under the CN domain. The document shows which SWGs are responsible for the.

DISCUSSION: Due to limitation of time the document was not presented in the TSG_CN meeting.

△ **The specification list will be maintained and produced by MCC at each TSG_N Plenary meeting for review**

RESULT: The document was **PROVIDED for INFORMATION.**

7.3 Working Methods and Work Style.

7.4 Support Arrangements.

7.5 Other Issues.

8 Postponed Issues.

9 Work plan and Future Meetings.

9.1 All IP R2000.

10 Any Other Business.

11 Close of Meeting.

Chairman's comments: R00 Dec 2000 meeting – will move back to 3day weekend 3 day format.

Unlikely for March (Monday 09:00) and possible for June and Sept meeting

Remove 1st day 10:00 start time – start 09:00. No Sunday working

Harry step down after March – elections will start to replace.

(Ian Stephen Mikko) showed interest to stand for post.

ANNEX A: OUTPUT MATERIAL

A.1 Liaison Statements

The following Liaison Statements will be sent from the TSG_CN Meeting:

DOC	Subject	To	STATUS
NP-99527	Transfer of LCS to 3GPP	T1.P1	

A.2 Work Items

The following Work Items were agreed by TSG_CN:

DOC	Work Item Subject	Source SWG
NP-99476	GTP Enhancements	N1
NP-99535	Circuit Switched Multimedia Features for R00	N3

A.3 New Specifications / Technical Reports

The following specifications / technical report were approved by TSG_CN:

DOC	Subject	Source SWG
NP-99455	TS 23.122 on NAS Functions related to Mobile Station (MS) in idle mode	N1
NP-99440	TR 23.814 on Work Item MS Classmark	N1

ANNEX B: Participants List for CN3#6

	Person's name	email	Organisation name,	status	partner
Miss	Ban Al -Bakri	ban.albakri@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPORG_REP	ETSI
Mr.	Niels Peter Andersen Skov	npa001@email.mot.com	MOTOROLA A/S	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Ermanno Berruto	ermanno.berruto@cse.it	TELECOM ITALIA S.p.A.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Nigel. H Berry	nhberry@lucent.com	Lucent Technologies N. S. UK	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Simon Binar	simon.binar@hd-neceur.com	NEC Europe Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Olavi Blomberg	olavi.blomberg@sonera.com	SONERA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	David Boswarthick	david.boswarthick@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPORG_REP	ETSI
Mr.	Igor Brusic	igor.brusic@tuwien.ac.at	ÖFEG	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Quentin Cassen	quent.cassen@conexant.com	Conexant Systems, Inc.	3GPPMEMBER	T1
Mr.	Jonathan P. Castro	jonathan.castro@orange.ch	ORANGE PCS LTD	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Dr.	Asok Chatterjee	asok.chatterjee@ericsson.com	Ericsson Inc.	3GPPMEMBER	T1
Mr.	Joon-Sik Choi	jschoi@halla.dacom.co.kr	DACOM Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	TTA
Mr.	WonChul Chung	wcchung@kt.co.kr	KOREA TELECOM CORP.	3GPPMEMBER	TTA
Mr.	Stephen Corkovic	s.corkovic@vipnet.hr	VIP-NET GSM d.o.o	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Harald Dettner	harald.dettner@icn.siemens.de	SIEMENS AG	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI Chairman
Mr.	Ian Doig	ian.doig@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPORG_REP	ETSI
Mr.	Peter Donat	peter.donat@siemens.at	FEEI	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Ed Ehrlich	ed.ehrlich@nokia.com	Nokia Telecommunications Inc.	3GPPMEMBER	T1
Mr.	John B Fenn	johnbfenn@aol.com	SAMSUNG Electronics	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mrs.	Touria Gargari	touria.w.gargari@telia.se	TELIA AB	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI

Mr. Alexandre	Gervais	alexandre.gervais@theseus.fr	THESEUS	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Roch	Glitho	lmcrogl@lmc.ericsson.se	Ericsson Inc.	3GPPMEMBER	T1	
Mr. François	Grassot	frg@rigeltelecom.com	BOUYGUES Telecom	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Steffen	Habermann	steffen.habermann@t-mobil.de	Deutsche Telekom MobilNet	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Eric	Hamel	eric.hamel@cnet.francetele.com.fr	France Telecom	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Bai	Han	szhb@huawei.com.cn	HuaWei Technologies Co., Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	CWTS	
Mr. Sungsoo	Han	sshan@sktelecom.com	SK TELECOM	3GPPMEMBER	TTA	
Mr. Stephen	Hayes	stephen.hayes@ericsson.com	Ericsson Inc.	3GPPMEMBER	T1	ViceChairman
Mrs. Monica	Hellman	monica.hellman@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPOR_G_REP	ETSI	
Mr. Hannu	Hietalahti	hannu.hietalahti@nokia.com	NOKIA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Yukio	Hiramatsu	hiramatsu.yukio@lab.ntt.co.jp	NTT	3GPPMEMBER	TTC	
Mr. Thomas	Holm	thrho@tdk.dk	TELE DANMARK A/S	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Tomas	Holmström	tomas.holmstrom@ecs.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Mark	Hosford	mhosford@lginfocomm.com	LGIC	3GPPMEMBER	TTA	
Mr. Yun-Chao	Hu	yun-chao.hu@era.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Masakazu	Ishihara	ishihara@mcs.abk.nec.co.jp	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Kenji	Ito	kenji.ito@skk.siemens.co.jp	Siemens K.K	3GPPMEMBER	ARIB	
Mr. Seiji	Izumiya	izumiya@japan-telecom.co.jp	Japan Telecom Co. Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	ARIB	
Mr. Teuvo	Jarvela	teuvo.jarvela@nokia.com	NOKIA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Hee-Young	Jung	hyjung@pec.etri.re.kr	ETRI	3GPPMEMBER	TTA	
Mr. Seppo	Junninen	seppo.junninen@hpy.fi	Finnet Group	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Mikko	Kanerva	mikko.kanerva@nokia.com	NOKIA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI	
Mr. Ku Hwa	Kang	kings@sktelecom.com	SK TELECOM	3GPPMEMBER	TTA	
Mr. Masahiro	Kikuchi	kikuchi.masahiro@promote.ntt.com.co.jp	NTT	3GPPMEMBER	TTC	
Mr. Hyoung-Taek Kim		htkim@lgic.co.kr	LGIC	3GPPMEMBER	TTA	

Mr.	Norbert	Klehn	norbert.klehn@icn.siemens.de	SIEMENS AG	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Peter	Kobriger	eedpek@eed.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Hiroshi	Komatsu	hkomatsu@japan-telecom.co.jp	Japan Telecom Co. Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	ARIB
Mr.	Takashi	Koshimizu	koshimi@nw.yrp.nttdocomo.co.jp	NTT DoCoMo	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mrs.	Evelyne	Le Gall	evelyne.legall@cegetel.fr	CEGETEL	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Woo Yong	Lee	wylee@pec.etri.re.kr	ETRI	3GPPMEMBER	TTA
Mr.	Patrick	Lohat	patrick.lohat@alcatel.fr	ALCATEL France	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Magne	Lund	magne.lund@netcom-gsm.no	NETCOM GSM A/S	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Edgar	Lycksell	Edgar.A.Lycksell@telia.se	TELIA AB	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Yutaka	Maeda	maeda@arib.or.jp	ARIB	3GPPORG_REP	ARIB
Mr.	John M	Meredith	john.meredith@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPORG_REP	ETSI
Mr.	Sumio	Miyagawa	miyagawa@twics.com	Siemens K.K.	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Ms.	Antonella	Napolitano	antonella.napolitano@cse.it	TELECOM ITALIA S.p.A.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Ms.	elena	Neira	elena.neira@nrj.ericsson.se	Nippon Ericsson	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mr.	Akishige	Noda	noda@ss.ts.fujitsu.co.jp	Fujitsu Limited	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Dr.	Hakan	Ohlsén	hakn.ohlsen@lme.ericsson.se	Nippon Ericsson	3GPPMEMBER	ARIB
Mr.	Ian David	Park	ian.park@VF.VODAFONE.CO.UK		VODAFONE AirTouch Plc	3GPPMEMBER ETSI
Mr.	Luis	Ramos	luramos@bouyguetelecom.fr	BOUYGUES Telecom	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Chang-Ho	Ryoo	changho.ryoo@ekk.ericsson	ERICSSON KOREA	3GPPMEMBER	TTA
Mr.	Nick	Sampson	nick.sampson@orange.co.uk	ORANGE PCS LTD	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr.	Akio	Sasaki	arib@mb.kcom.ne.jp	ARIB	3GPPORG_REP	ARIB
Mr.	Gary	Schlanger	schlanger@att.com	AT&T Corp.	3GPPMEMBER	T1
Mr.	Franco	Settimo	franco.settimo@etsi.fr	ETSI	3GPPORG_REP	ETSI
Mr.	Iain	Sharp	isharp@nortelnetworks.com	NORTEL NETWORKS (EUROPE)	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI

Mr. Takeshi	Sugiyama	sugiyama@nw.yrp.nttdocomo.co.jp	NTT DoCoMo	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mr. Jonas		Sundborg	jonas.sundborg@era.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER ETSI
Mr. Tatsumi	Takabatake	takabatake@mcs.abk.nec.co.jp	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mr. Toshiyuki	Tamura	tamurato@e1sf.ncos.nec.co.jp	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mr. Naoki	Tani	tani@nw.yrp.nttdocomo.co.jp	NTT DoCoMo	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Mr. Henry C.	Taylor	henry.taylor@bt.com	BT	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr. Stefan	Toth	stefan.toth@erv.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr. Akira	Tsukamoto	a_tuka@hcom.denso.co.jp	DENSO CORPORATION	3GPPMEMBER	ARIB
Mr. Artur	Veloso	a.veloso@alcatel.de	ALCATEL SEL AG	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr. Jean	Vosters	jean.vosters@alcatel.be	ALCATEL BELL	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr. Moto	Wakaki	wakaki@japan-telecom.co.jp	Japan Telecom Co. Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	TTC
Ms. Renqiu	Wang	smdwrq@sbell.com.cn	SHANG HAI BELL	3GPPMEMBER	CWTS
Mr. XiaoYun	Wang	mcbtech@public3.bta.net.cn	China Mobile Company Corp.	3GPPMEMBER	CWTS
Dr. Huan	XU	XU%sagaut@germany.eu.net	TEKTRONIX UK Ltd	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI
Mr. Masami	Yabusaki	yabusaki@docomo.fr	DoCoMo Europe S.A.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI ViceChairman
Mr. Keiji	Yoshino	yoshino@ttc.or.jp	TTC	3GPPORG_REP	TTC
Mr. Albert	Yuhan	ayuhan@omnipoint-pcs.com	Omnipoint Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	T1
Mrs. Huayan	Zhang	etc.etcerry@memo.ericsson.se	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	ETSI

ANNEX C: List of Documents

NP-99250	CN#5 Meeting Agenda	CN Chairman
----------	---------------------	-------------

ANNEX D: List of CRs Approved by TSG_CN#6

To be provided once the CR database has been produced for all of the TSG groups

CR	Rev	Cat	Doc	WG	Old	New	Subject
Status							
23.003 : Numbering, Addressing and Identification							
007	1	A	NP-99300	N2	3.1.3	3.2.0	ASCII coding of <MNC> and <MCC> in APN approved
008		B	NP-99306	N2	3.1.3	3.2.0	SSN allocation for RANAP,RNSAP approved

ANNEX E: SMG3 Plenary Meeting # 6 - 15th December 1999

11. Outcome of TSG_N#6 Meeting 13-15th December 1999

- [SMG3 accepts and endorses all of the CRs presented to TSG CN#6 and has no additional material.](#)
- [SMG3 accepts and endorses all of the WIs and Reports presented by CN#6 and has no additional material.](#)

NP-99406: LS from SMG2.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**

NP-99467: LS from SMG1 SA1.

RESULT: The document was **NOTED**

NP-99436: CR to 03.10 v8.0.0

RESULT: The document was **SMG3 APPROVES this CR**

History

Document History	
15th December 1999	<p>DRAFT v.1.0.0 provided to a select group of delegates at the end of the CN plenary meeting.</p> <p>Comments, if any, to be addressed to:</p> <p>Mr. David Boswarthick, 3GPP TSG-CN3 Secretary MCC - ETSI Secretariat Tel :+33 (0)4 92 94 42 78 e-mail: david.boswarthick@etsi.fr</p> <p>A deadline of 2 weeks was given to the CN delegates for e-mail comments on the draft report.</p> <p>E-mail comments back to author by 3rd January 2000</p>
<i>Xxth December 1999</i>	<i>Comments integrated to tdoc number N3-99xxx, DRAFT v.2.0.0, and distributed by e-mail to N3 list.</i>
<i>29th Jan 2000</i>	<i>N3-99xxx v3.0.0 agreed without comments by N3 at the beginning of CN3#8 meeting.</i>